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PROCEEDINGS (8:35am.)

DR. KINGTON: My nameis Raynard Kington, the deputy director of NIH.

Good morning and welcome. It's a pleasure to be here representing Secretary Thompson and
Dr. Zerhouni, the director of NIH, in opening the fifth meeting of the Secretary's Advisory
Committee on Genetics, Health, and Society. This committee'swork isincreasingly important
in light of ongoing developments in genetics and genomics. Y our service on this committee
helpsin the Department, as well as other agencies represented around the table, to address and
stay abreast of the broad array of complex medical, scientific, ethical, legal, and social issues
raised by the development and use of genetics and genomic technologies, and we greatly
appreciate your commitment to this work.

I'm here not only to welcome all of you to the meeting but also to mark
several important changes in the committee's membership and leadership, and to honor the
service of three exceptional people, only two of which, | believe, are here.

First I'd like to begin by recognizing Dr. Edward M cCabe, the first chair of
the committee. The Secretary appointed Dr. McCabe for his expertise and knowledge of the
field and exceptional leadership qualities, and he did not disappoint. He was also appointed to
provide a smooth transition between the predecessor committee, the Secretary's Advisory
Committee on Genetic Testing, and this committee, which Dr. McCabe chaired for three years.

On behalf of the Secretary, let me thank you, Dr. McCabe, for your service
over the past five years to the HHS mission to improve health and for your dedication as chair
of the committee. Y ou have ably guided the committee through itsfirst year of life, through a
systematic review and priority-setting process that led to the committee's study priorities, and
through the development of consensus recommendations to the Secretary on genetic
discrimination, genetics education for health professionals, and direct-to-consumer marketing
of genetic tests. Y our leadership really has provided the committee with afirm foundation for
future work, and we've appreciated your service and al of the extratime the position of the
chair involves.

We want to acknowledge your leadership demonstrated in the transition of
the previous committee to the current committee, and as atoken of our appreciation it's my
pleasure to give you this certificate from the Secretary recognizing your service to the
committee.

(Applause.)

DR. KINGTON: Anocther plague, I'm sure.

(Laughter.)

DR. KINGTON: Wed aso like to thank two members of the committee
whose service isending. Kim Zellmer and Brad Margus were appointed for their knowledge of
consumer issues, bringing to the proceedings their own families experiences with genetic
disorders. They've each devoted an extraordinary amount of time and energy to the work of the
committee both during and between meetings, and they have contributed in many ways to
advancing our understanding of the impact of genetic and genomic technologies on families,
individuals, and society.

Ms. Zellmer, on behalf of the Secretary, let me thank you for your work and
commitment. | know that your personal experiences provided you with insights that have been
extraordinarily important to the committee's deliberations. Y our contributions to the
committee's work on priority setting and genetics education have been especially valuable, and
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we've appreciated your service enormously. We know that these are incredibly time-consuming
appointments to committees like this, and we appreciate your time.

If you could come forward, another plague.

(Applause.)

DR. KINGTON: Mr. Margusisnot here. However, let me still thank him
for al of hiswork and commitment to the committee. He, too, has brought important insights
and perspectives, personal and professional, to the deliberations of the committee, particularly
in the area of work on direct-to-consumer marketing. That's been particularly invaluable, and
we have a plague for him as well which we will deliver to him when he arrives.

Both of you can consider yourselves emeritus members of the committee,
which means that you can be called upon at any time to work more.

(Laughter.)

DR. KINGTON: The challenges posed by genetic and genomic
technologies are in many ways just beginning, and this committee is going to be incredibly
valuable for the foreseeable future. Aswe look forward, we are pleased that we were able to
identify an extraordinary person to follow as chair.

As| wasdriving over from the NIH, | realized that | knew Dr. Reed
Tuckson for amost 20 years. Dr. Tuckson was two years ahead of me in the Robert Wood
Johnson Clinical Scholars Training Program at the University of Pennsylvania, and when |
arrived fresh from my medical residency, all of the cohort of people who began when | began
were told in no uncertain terms that the bar had been raised considerably in terms of our
performance, and that Reed in particular was going to be a tough act to follow.

For the last almost 20 years, 19, I've counted on Reed as a colleague and
friend and mentor and have not hesitated to call upon him whenever necessary. We crossed
paths repeatedly when he was president of the Charles Drew University in Los Angelesand |
was at the RAND Corporation, and then later. Most recently he agreed to serve on one of the
most difficult committees we have had recently, and that's the NIH Blue Ribbon Task Force on
Conflict of Interest policies, which required an extraordinary time investment over avery short
period of time in advising us on how to deal with an issue that's of great importance to the
future of the agency.

Clearly, Dr. Tuckson has atough act to follow as well here, but we know
that you're up to the task and we have every confidence that you will, as you aways do,
perform admirably and make us all feel that we should work harder. Welcome, and I'll passit
off to you, Reed.

DR. TUCKSON: Thank you very much. Thank you for that.

| just want to give a couple of seconds to seeif, even though he's going to
be with usin deliberations for quite awhile, but Ed did such aterrific job. Assomebody who
was on the first committee and watched thistransition, | just marvel at what he was able to
achieve as our leader both on the first and now this committee.

But, Ed, would you like to say a couple of comments, please?

DR. McCABE: Wéll, thank you.

It's been truly an honor to serve on the Secretary's Advisory Committee on
Genetic Testing, and then the Secretary's Advisory Committee on Genetics, Health, and
Society. One of the things that you will find, Reed, isthat you have fantastic staff with Sarah
in charge, and you will be wiseto listen to what Sarah tellsyou. If you follow Sarah's
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directions, you will look extremely good. If I've had any success, that's been the secret to it.

(Laughter.)

DR. McCABE: But aso, the committee members are just fantastic on both
of those committees. From some experiences on the first committee, | learned that you always
had my back, and | hope that | can do equally aswell for you. Thank you.

(Applause.)

DR. TUCKSON: WEéell, we have alot to do, and thank God for each one of
you. It'sgoing to be very interesting to watch as so many of you are going to have a chance to
really produce and showcase the work that you've been doing as committee chairs of these
subcommittees and so forth. 1'm just amazed, as | read through all of this material again, at how
hard each one of you are working on this committee's behalf. We owe you a grade of thanks.

The public was made aware of this meeting through noticesin the Federal
Register, as well as announcements on the SACGHS website and listserv. | will tell you that as
I've come to review alittle bit about how do you evaluate the quality of advisory committeesto
the government, | am reminded as | have looked through some of those criteria that the number-
one way in which these committees demonstrate their value to the nation is through its ahility
to reach out to the public. So I'm very pleased, and | think we're even going to try to do some
other things which we can talk about later in terms of redoubling our efforts to have all of our
work into the hands of the public that is most interested in this and those who ought to be more
interested in what we're doing. So this meeting was made available through those notices.

We were rechartered again through August of 2006, so you're stuck.

(Laughter.)

DR. TUCKSON: The following ex officio agency representatives, we want
to thank all of them that are here, but | want to make particular note that we are joined today
also by Ms. Cari Dominguez, chair of the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. She
will be serving as the EEOC's ex officio.

Chair Dominguez, we're very, very pleased that you are taking thetime. It
really shows how important the issues are that you're here about, | know most that are of
interest to you, how important it is to our country. So thank you for joining us.

Mr. Richard Campanelli, director of the HHS Office for Civil Rights, isalso
expected with ustoday, and that is also worthy of note.

Dr. Francis Chesley, director of AHRQ's Office of Extramural Research,
Education, and Priority Populations, has been appointed to serve as AHRQ's new ex officio.
Thank you very much, Dr. Chesley, for joining and serving.

We're glad for all of our other ex officios who have been maintaining their
commitment to this committee.

Chris Hook and Joan Reede will not be attending. Hunt Willard will be
joining us tomorrow. So we thank them for that.

One of the most important things, at least to me coming on, and I'm sureto
you, was that given that we are advisory to the Secretary of Health, does the Secretary of
Health and does his office care about what we are doing. | wanted you to know that | did put in
acall to that office and spoke with, as the news would say, an unnamed senior official.

(Laughter.)

DR. TUCKSON: | was encouraged that the unnamed senior official was
well aware of what we are doing. | wasinsistent and assured that within a couple of days of my
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conversation the Secretary would be briefed about the fact that the new incoming chairman of
the committee wanted to be sure that it was important to him and that he was paying attention
to what we are doing.

So | will just simply leave it there and say that | think it isimportant
because you al are working so hard on this committee that you've got to know that it's not just
being filed on a shelf somewhere, that thisisimportant that it's getting done, and I'm going to
take my responsibility, as Ed hands the baton off to me, to really ensure that that is happening.
So | will give you an update on that, on the Secretary's conversation, the next time that we
meet.

Let me say that the status of the committee's work product since June, what
has been going on, we have the resolution on genetics education and training of health
professionals. That copy is available at the desk. It was transmitted to the Secretary in August.
The roadmap for the integration of genetics and genomics in society, the study priorities of the
Secretary's advisory committee, will be transmitted to the Secretary very shortly, and that will
happen really in the next matter of days and weeks.

The letter to the Secretary on direct-to-consumer marketing of genetic tests
and technologiesisin the final stages of review by our committee and will be transmitted to the
Secretary soon. It'sin the table folder, and thereis still time, if you have any last, last, last
minute, short, brief, non-controversia comments.

Sarah is kicking me under the table as | say that.

Finally, avery brief overview of the agenda. Of course, first we will start
out with learning about important HHS initiatives to promote family history-taking. We will
then dive very deeply into the issue of genetic discrimination and information about the nature,
magnitude and scope of the discrimination problem in society. We will move to completing
our deliberations and finalizing our recommendations on coverage and reimbursement. Then
finally, we'll begin planning future work on two high-priority issues, large popul ation studies
and pharmacogenomics.

Public comments are scheduled for today and tomorrow. So far we have
about seven or so who have registered to provide comments. Any others who may be interested
should sign up at the registration desk. Again, thisisarelentlessly public experience. So if
you have comments, we welcome you to do that.

With that, let me turn over to the czar, the general, Sarah Carr, who will
take care of some very important technical stuff.

MS. CARR: Thank you, Reed.

Asyou know, the members of this committee are appointed as special
government employees in order to serve, and at each meeting | always remind you about the
rules of conduct that apply to government employees and to you. These rules arein a document
called " Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the Executive Branch," and each one of
you got a copy of this document, and | know you've reviewed it very carefully.

I'm just going to highlight two of the rulestoday. Oneisabout conflicts of
interest, and the other is about lobbying.

Conflicts of interest. Before every meeting, you provide uswith
information about your personal, professional, and financial interests, and thisisinformation
that we use to determine whether you have any real, potential, or apparent conflicts of interest
that could compromise your ability to be objective in giving advice during the committee
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meetings. While we waive conflicts of interest for general matters because we believe your
ability to be objective will not be affected by your interests in such matters, we also rely to a
great degree on you to be attentive during our meetings to the possibility that an issue will arise
that could affect or appear to affect your interestsin a specific way.

In addition, we have provided each of you with alist of your financial
interests and covered relationships that would pose a conflict for you if they became afocal
point of the committee deliberations. If this happens, we ask you to recuse yourself and leave
the room.

Lobbying. Government employees are prohibited from lobbying, and thus
we may not lobby, not as individuals and not as a committee. If you lobby in your professional
capacity or as aprivate citizen, it isimportant that you keep that activity separate from your
activities associated with this committee. Just keep in mind that we are advisory to the
Secretary of Health and Human Services. We don't advise Congress.

Thank you for being so attentive to the rules of conduct. We appreciate
your conscientiousness very much.

DR. TUCKSON: Terrific.

Well, to kick us off on our first session on the importance of family history
in health, to get that started, I'm going to introduce Francis Collins. We have to be concerned
that Francis flew on the redeye all night, so we'rein great danger that he will fall off at any
moment. So, Ellen and Danidl, if you'll keep an eye on him, we'll all appreciate it.

DR. COLLINS: Thanksfor telling just about everybody about that, Reed.
That's much appreciated, and | probably will need the support.

Well, it's my pleasure to introduce Alan Guttmacher, who is going to give
this presentation on the importance of family history in health. Alan has a distinguished career
asaphysician in the area of medical genetics and pediatrics. For some time, he was the only
board-certified medical geneticist in the State of Vermont, and also ran the first newborn
intensive care unit in the State of Vermont.

The State of Vermont went into severe mourning when | recruited Alan to
come to NIH because, as you can imagine, their census dropped rather dramatically in terms of
these kinds of capabilities. But since he has been here for the last five years, he's become an
absolutely essential part of what we're trying to do in the genomic arena, and he runs our Office
of Policy Education and Communication, as well as a host of other issues, and he has been the
point person in our discussions with the Surgeon General about a particular initiative on family
history that | think he is going to tell you something about.

I would also just like to say, because it happens to be the very day when this
is being announced, that Alan has been elected to the Institute of Medicine as of today. So
congratulations, Alan.

(Applause.)

DR. GUTTMACHER: When Francis said he wanted to introduce me, |
knew there was some way he was going to try to embarrass me. Since | recently introduced
him, | was quite concerned. | thought it might be even worse than that. But thank you.

Thisisavery important issue. In fact, the Surgeon General had hoped to be
here to be able to give thistalk. He's very sorry that because of another commitment he
couldn't be here. I'm very sorry that because of another commitment he couldn't be here. |
hope you won't be too sorry that because of another commitment he couldn't be here to talk
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about a trans-departmental initiative that the Surgeon General isreally spearheading, and that
has to do with family history.

So first | thought I'd talk alittle bit about the importance of family history
and health. | realize that thiswill be largely preaching to the choir, but I'm going to end the
sermon by letting everyone know how we can use our voices together to sing and preach to a
larger choir than just the folks in this room.

If thisisthe age of genomics, as we much trumpet it, why should family
history be important? It seems sort of old-fashioned, the kind of thing you might, heaven
forbid, use a pencil and piece of paper about and not that sophisticated genomic tool, et cetera.
Well, of course, we know, in the age of genomics, that most diseases are due to an interaction
of multiple genes and environmental factors. So we know that, but what do we do with it?

Well, we should remind ourselves that today, almost every patient that is
seen has available afree -- | would underscore "free" since that's unusual medicine --
personalized tool that captures many of those genetic and environmental interactions and can
serve as a cornerstone for individualized disease prevention. That tool, of course, which has
stood the test of time, the other thing to be said for it, isthe family history.

Now, even though we will, of course, continue to gain important new
genomics tools in the years ahead, and those are the kinds of things that this committee has
been thinking about and their impact on health care, family history is going to remain relevant
for many yearsto come, and in fact will become more useful because it has to do with such
varied health concerns as you see here -- heart disease, colorectal cancer, breast cancer, ovarian
cancer, osteoporosis, asthmatype 2, diabetes, suicide. You can go on and on. Most of the
common, significant causes of morbidity and mortality that we have, in fact, family history can
contribute to our understanding of them and certainly our approach to individual patients.

Y et nonethel ess, most people, many people certainly, are unaware of their
relevant medical histories, and many of us health professionals under-utilize thisinformation in
advising our patients about how to maintain good health.

For instance, you can use family history information to affect the way that
you do population screening for all of these different kinds of conditions, alarge array of
conditions to which family history is pertinent. Then beyond screening in terms of our
management of various conditions, again alarge slew of conditions for which we have good
datato show that family health history can in fact make a difference in management.

So if thisis so useful, why aren't health professionals using it more
consistently and more effectively? All of us who have aclinical background would be
embarrassed probably to talk about the way we individually use the family history but would
certainly be embarrassed to talk about how all health care providersin general, our professions
tend to do that.

I think one bar isthat clinicians tend to underestimate the actual utility of
the family history. The way that we can get past that hump | think is really better teaching and
more pervasive role modeling of the effective use of the family history. If those of uswho have
some particular background in thinking about family history and using it in health care were to
demonstrate to others how it can be helpful, I think that the message would spread more
effectively.

Of course, another significant factor which becomes more significant with
each year's health care changesis the insufficient time, really in the clinical setting often, to
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obtain, to organize, and to analyze the family history. It's one thing to say family history can be
pertinent, but it takes alot of timeto actually collect the information and to be able to set it
down in some way that is available in the future and to be able to really anayze and do
something with it.

Now, how do we get past that hurdle? Well, there are some creative
approaches out there that people have been working on in recent yearsthat | think are just
beginning to come to fruition that will help practitioners who are busy do this using less of their
time. But if wedo that, in fact, do the patients care about this? Well, there are soon to be
published data that come from the CDC -- they're not published yet, so I'm not going to tell you
about them, but you can look forward to them soon from Muin and his colleagues -- that show
that the American public actually iswell aware that family history isimportant to health. But
despite that, relatively few people in the general public have actually ever collected health
information from relatives to obtain afamily health history, which suggests that there, too, isa
bar, an obstacle which needs to be overcome, and that is that even though people are convinced
family history can be pertinent and important for their own health, they haven't actually acted
on that, which means there are probably some impedimentsin terms of this being difficult for
families and individuals to do.

So what can we do about that was something that a number of agencies
within the Department have been trying to deal with over the last few years, and those include
the Surgeon General's office, HRSA, AHRQ, very importantly the CDC, and various parts of
the NIH aswell. So we've come together to form what's called now, or will be called officially
in alittle while, the Surgeon General's American Family Health Initiative. So let metell you a
little bit about thisinitiative.

The goals of the initiative are, first of al, to increase the American public's
awareness of the importance of family history and health, though we again have some data that
they're fairly aware of this already, but not so true at the moment isto give the American public
tools to be able to gather, understand, evaluate, and use family history to improve their health;
to increase the awareness of health professionals about the importance of family history; to give
those health professionals tools to be able to gather, evaluate and use family health information,
and tools to communicate with their patients about family history; to use this as away to
increase both the genomics literacy and health literacy in general. If we're going to get the
public ready to use some of these new genomic tools as they become more available, genetic
testing, et cetera, it would be agood ideato have folks become more familiar with some of
those concepts by using the old tried and true family history. And preparing both the American
public and their health professionals for this coming era of genomics in which we believe that
will be aregular part of health care.

So what can we do? Thefirst little product of thisinitiative to point to is
something called My Family Health Portrait. You seethisisthe banner for it. Thisisadummy
of somewhat what it will look like. If you look closely you'll seethat it says "My Family
Health Portrait" at the top. Inthe middle it says"Welcometo Y our Family Health Portrait.”
Thisis such adummy that it hasn't been updated to reflect the official name, My Family Health
Portrait.

Thisis going to be aweb-based tool that will be unveiled very shortly -- I'll
tell you a bit more about that in a moment -- where individuals and families will be able to
download directly to their computer so that thisinformation lives only on their computer, not
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on some government site, which would be illegal amongst other things, and allow people -- not
just allow people, but give people, we believe, an easy, interactive kind of way to gather their
family health information. Then once they've gathered it, in fact, give them some guidance
about what they might do with that information.

So November the 8th, Monday in afew weeks, there will be aformal
announcement of the initiative, and there will be the release of the My Family Health Portrait
website. Therewill be abig even downtown. Severa agencies within the Department will be
cooperating in that. We're going to have some other media around that date, so we're hoping
that you will hear afair bit about it in your local media at that time, as well as national media.

Thisisthe official logo of the thing. There will be this press conference at
the National Press Club on November 8th to announce this.

Then on Thanksgiving Day, thisisreally the focus and thisis part of what
will be talked about at this press conference. The ideaisto make Thanksgiving Day that day
when American families by and large traditionally gather together to eat alot, to watch the
Packers on TV and do other kinds of things, to use that family event to actually talk about
family history and to gather family history information, the idea that people would have this
web-based tool. They could use it that day, they could gather some of the information before,
they could gather it afterwards. But the time when the family is really together, when you have
Aunt Gladys around who can actually tell you about what you thought you had heard about
Uncle Joe or something like that, to get more accurate information.

That is, of course, the other problem with doing thisin the office, is that
often you have the person who comesin has pretty imprecise information. All the cliniciansin
the room are nodding their heads. That's the experience of all of us. In fact, when you have the
family gathered around is the best time to get more accurate information. To be able to build
that over the course of time, we're hoping to make thisinto an American annual event, that
Thanksgiving would be that day. We've all seen that picture, the traditional Norman Rockwell.

"Freedom From Want" iswhat it used to be called. Theway | think of it is now that we've
finished the family history, let's eat.

We hope to encourage the American public to think that Thanksgiving isthe
day, before you sit down to raise your cholesterol levels, that you actually talk about family
history and gather this information.

Theinitiative will continue past this year, past this Thanksgiving. We're
very eager to have other interested parties, be they federal agencies, and particularly non-
federal agencies, other organizations, et cetera, that we've had some communications with
previoudly to the degree that we're legally alowed to do that, we're very much hoping that this
will be something that not just the genetics community, certainly the genetics community but
other communities will participate in it and seize an important idea to bring this tool that we
really know can make a difference in health care and can be fairly easily accomplished, that we
be able to do that in a much better way.

So with that, I'm going to stop. Mr. Chairman, | don't know if there's time
for any questions or comments. If folks have them, 1'd be happy to take any.

DR. TUCKSON: Oh, we actually do have just asecond. Thisisan
important presentation.

Let mejust turn to Ed. | think he has a comment first.

DR. McCABE: Wéll, | just wanted to comment that | teach the medical
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students. | had three hours with them last week and | told them that this was the cheapest but
perhaps the best genetic test that we had today.

The other thing is | was shaking my head because | recalled that as a
geneticist, as a board-certified medical geneticist, | was always asking my patients for their
family history, and | realized that | was asking them for more than | could provide myself, and
sat down with my mother and went over the family history and learned quite a bit about myself
that | had not known. Soon thereafter, she developed Alzheimer's disease, so it was very
important that we were able to record that information and store it away in the family Bible so
that it can be then utilized by generations to come.

So thisis an extremely important tool. | think too few of us take the time to
really get that information, and | would encourage everyone here today to be sure that you can
do for your families what we as geneticists ask our patients to do for us.

DR. TUCKSON: Any other quick questions or comments?

(No response.)

DR. TUCKSON: Alan, thank you so much.

Let me just ask two follow-ups, then, because | think you've got two things
that | think we need to sort of get some more information about. First isthat whatever is going
to go out on thisin terms of genetics and literacy, which is part of this, the whole idea of why is
thisimportant in a genomic age to the public and how do you use this information, we sure
would like to, | think, see that and benefit from whatever is being sent out, because that may
help us through some of our efforts to improve the public literacy around the issues of genetics.

So | think it would be agreat FY| for us.

Secondly, if there's any part of thistool that's going to be used as part of any
of the agency's efforts around information technology, electronic medical records, | think it
would be useful for usto also have that as an FY| follow-up, because we're going to obviously
wind up having to deal with those issues downstream. So if thisis going to be integrated in any
way into any of the new health information technology efforts that are coming out of the
government, it will be interesting to see.

DR. GUTTMACHER: Weéll, certainly, we welcome the opportunity to keep
the committee aware of this and also to ask input from the committee and through the
committee, the various folks that the folks the committee is connected to, because again, thisis
the first stage of what we hope will be along-term kind of initiative. So we'd be very happy --
for instance, we are developing not just a computer base but also pamphlets and those kinds of
things that we would love organizations interested in distributing those, which is often the
biggest challenge, of course, with the printed word, how to distribute them.

We're developing many of these things. For instance, the computer base
too, | should tell you, will be available not just in English but also in Spanish before
Thanksgiving, so that we'd love the opportunity to interact with the committee as this goes
forward. Thank you.

DR. TUCKSON: Wéll, to bring thisto closure, let me offer three quick
possibilities that we might be able to do. Unlessthere's amajor controversy, we might try to
get an endorsement.

First, that we endorse the importance of family history as atool in medicine
apropos Ed's comments.

Number two, that we report to the Secretary that we are encouraged to see
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HHS agencies working together to bring this to fruition.

Third, that we would encourage those agencies that are not part of thisto
get involved.

So we would at |east be supportive of thiswith those three
recommendations.

Isthere any discussion about those three?

Emily?

DR. WINN-DEEN: 1 just wanted to ask aquestion. Areyou going to
provide some kind of a mailout so that you could take a pamphlet or something and mail it to
your elderly relatives and ask them at their leisure, for those of them that aren't computer
literate and aren't able to deal with that, to send information back?

DR. GUTTMACHER: Therewill be a pamphlet which will explain sort of
the role of family history, why it'simportant for specific disorders, and has a template in which
you can record information that we made available.

DR. TUCKSON: So with that, by a show of hands, would you support
endorsing the importance of family history asatool in medicine, that we report to the Secretary
that we're encouraged to see HHS agencies working together to get this done, and third, that we
would encourage other agencies to get involved and support this initiative?

All thosein favor of that transmission, say aye, or raise you hand, same
thing.

(Chorus of ayes.)

DR. TUCKSON: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

DR. TUCKSON: Terrific.

For afollow-up, Alan, | hope we do get those two follow-ups so that we can
see what actually does go out.

DR. GUTTMACHER: Very good.

DR. TUCKSON: Thank you.

DR. GUTTMACHER: Thank you, appreciateit.

DR. TUCKSON: All right. For the next part of our effort, we're going to
devote from now until 12:45 on a pretty serious discussion on genetic discrimination. Y ou will
remember that thisis atop priority for our committee. We've written two lettersto the
Secretary urging support for the enactment of federal nondiscrimination legislation. At our
March and June meetings we discussed the question of whether there were additional efforts
that we could take to inform the debate regarding federal legislation in thisarea. The United
States Senate has subsequently unanimously passed a genetic nondiscrimination bill ayear ago,
but the House Subcommittee on Employer/Employee Relations has held a hearing on thisin
July without further action that we are aware of. Thereisasummary of those hearingsin your
Tab number 4.

The purpose of this session is to gather additional public perspectives on
genetic discrimination and information about the nature, magnitude, and scope of this problem
in society. The session was planned and organized by our Task Force on Genetic
Discrimination. Agnes Masny, who has been terrific as chair, and Barbara Harrison and Debra
Leonard and Emily Winn-Deen and Robinsue Frohboese and Tim Leshan, former EEOC
Commissioner Paul Miller, Joann Boughman of the Genetic Fairness Coalition, al were
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extraordinarily involved in this, and we thank them for it. Amanda, | want to thank you for
your lead staff work on this. | also want to thank the members of the panel for participating and
taking note of the written comments that have been submitted. They have been compiled in a
separate binder, which | hope you all have. A copy isavailable for review at the registration
desks.

Now to lead us through this, let me introduce Agnes. Thank you, Agnes,
for your hard work.

MS. MASNY: Thank you very much.

I'd aso like to thank Dr. Tuckson, who is going to help co-facilitate this
session, and again thank Dr. McCabe for his leadership, bringing us thus far, and to the staff,
Sarah and her staff, for helping coordinate, and especially Amanda Sarata, who has been
working by my sidein helping to pull al thistogether; and most especially to thank all of the
speakers who have come from far and wide today to be able to give testimony today so that we
will be able to document for the record the experience of the public, health professional's, and
others regarding this very important issue of health discrimination, genetic discrimination.

As Dr. Reed mentioned, what led up to forming this particular task force
and the members that he already indicated have been presented, and then as was mentioned is
that one of the reasons why we have actually established having a public hearing today is that
because from the past we've recognized that the evidence about genetic discrimination, and
particularly the fear of genetic discrimination, has been very hard to document. There are very
many reasons that have been brought forth to the committee regarding the public's concern
about genetic privacy, and presenting their information in legal casesisvery hard to do. So
that's one of the reasons why we wanted to have this hearing.

Also, because to date there has been lack of sufficient evidence, and this
lack of evidence has been actually brought up as one of the reasons as a barrier to going ahead
with legislation for anti-discrimination. So at the 2004 June meeting, we did decide to
undertake this public hearing in order to provide the Secretary with additional information that
might be useful in addressing the potential obstacles regarding genetic discrimination and
moving it forward for legislation.

So the purpose of this session, as Reed has already mentioned, isto learn
more about the magnitude and scope and the nature of genetic discrimination throughout
society, and to provide all of uswith this public forum to be able to both hear the testimony and
then to be able to discuss the issues that will come forth from this hearing.

Then the last step will be for us as a committee to then look at what are the
next steps that we have to take to hopefully move the legislation forward.

So what we're going to be doing today is we're actually going to hear from
three panels: members of the public, health care providers, and then additional stakeholders.
The patient panel will consist of members of the public who have experienced genetic
discrimination or who have altered their health care because they have a concern about genetic
discrimination either from insurance or from employment, or those who have had to pay out of
pocket because of their concern for genetic discrimination.

We also took time to look at, as atask force, getting members of the health
care community providers who have that first-hand experience with the patients, hearing their
concerns about genetic discrimination, to aso be able to come and testify. So again, we hope
to hear from the providers about some of their patients who may have altered their health care
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decisions or who have not participated in genetic research because of genetic discrimination
and other concerns that they have regarding discrimination.

Then the third panel will be additional stakeholders that will hopefully give
us an additional perspective, and this from employers, from the health insurance perspective,
and from the society at large, and this primarily through a representative from the Center for
Genetics and Public Policy who, over the past severa months, have held town meetings across
the country on the issues of genetics, and genetic discrimination was one of theissues. So welll
be hearing that particular perspective aswell.

The committee and the SACGHS had requested written public comments
through the Federal Register notice, through the SACGHS website, through the major
distribution lists of SACGHS, and then we also targeted specific medical groups like the
American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology to be able to go directly to their membership
to ask about this particular issue, whether they as providers have come in contact with genetic
discrimination or the fear of discrimination from their patients, and then also various listservs
from health professionals, physicians, nurses, and genetic counselors to request public
comments.

So we did receive 43 public comments. Twenty-two were from the public,
11 were from health care providers, 9 from professional organizations, and one very nice,
thoughtful testimony from Representative L ouise Slaughter, who has co-sponsored the House
version of the bill 1910.

So we're going to begin, then, with the most important part, to actually hear
from the public, and we're going to start first with the patient panel. We'rereally very fortunate
to have with us today a panel of seven members of the public who would like to share their
personal stories and experiences and their own perspective on genetic discrimination. They
come to us from across the country.

What I'll do isI'll introduce the whole panel as awhole, and you can just
kind of go in order across from the table. We will ask the speakers that they'll have 10 minutes
to present their public testimony. WEell try to keep track of the time for you. Then after
everyone has had the opportunity to present, then we will open it up for questions from the
advisory group, and the ex officios will have an opportunity to ask any additional questions
after the end of al of the testimony, okay?

So again, we'd like to thank and welcome our first panel. We have Heidi
Williams from Cecilia, Kentucky. Phaedra Malatek is here with her family, her two sons, from
Chicago, Illinois. Rebecca Fisher from Oakton, Virginia. Tonia Phillips from Roanoke,
Virginia. PaulaFunk from Little Rock, Arkansas. Maria Carolina Hinestrosafrom
Washington, D.C. Phil Hardt from Phoenix, Arizona.

We're going to turn it over to you. Phaedra, would you be willing to start us
off? Oh, no. Heidi, do you want to start? And we'll go down theline.

MS. WILLIAMS: Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, my name is Heidi Williams, and
my children, Jayme, 8, and Jesse, 10, were recently victims of genetic discrimination. In
August of 2003, | saw acommercial on television advertising affordable health care insurance
for individuals through Humana, Inc. | called the toll-free number and talked with a young
woman who quoted me a price for a policy that would cover both of my children. | wastold
that the monthly cost to insure my children would be approximately $105, and | immediately
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told the young woman | would like to complete an application so that the coverage would begin
as soon as possible.

| was asked a series of questions about my children, including whether or
not they had a preexisting condition. | relayed to the young woman, under athreat of afine and
incarceration for falsifying information, the fact that my children were carriers of the genetic
disorder called alpha-1 antitrypsin deficiency, or AAT, aliver deficiency that can progressively
affect the lungs, the liver, or both, but that my children, unlike their mother, who islung
symptomatic, would never suffer from any aspect of the disorder.

The young woman, who wasn't quite sure what to do with thisinformation,
asked me to hold on the line while she contacted her supervisor. As| spoke with her
supervisor, | again explained how my children were only carriers of the AAT gene and that my
children themselves would never suffer from any aspect of the disorder as| am suffering, and
that they are exceptionally healthy and active children. Again, | wastold to hold the line
because, as this gentleman was uncomfortable with the information | had imparted, he needed
to contact his supervisor.

As| spoke to the senior supervisor, | once again relayed the information
about alpha-1 and how my children were only carriers. To be born what is considered
symptomatic, you must have two parents who are at least carriers of the AAT gene and be of a
certain phenotype. | am what is considered the symptomatic phenotype of ZZ, and my husband
is considered to be of anormal phenotype. Therefore, my children can only be carriers and, as
research supports, will never be susceptible to the various problems symptomatic AATs face,
including lung and liver failure.

Once the senior supervisor and | finished speaking, | was given back to the
young woman who initially interviewed me and, after finalizing the application, was told by her
that | would receive areply to my children’s application for health insurance within 24 hours.
After five days of waiting, | knew instinctively that there had been a problem with my
children's application. | received aletter two days later, exactly one week after the phone
application, stating that my children were being rejected for their health care insurance through
Humana, Inc., dueto their AAT status and for no other reason.

After much self-recrimination, | shared my woes with the Alpha-1 Lungs
and Life Chat Group, alarge alpha-q Internet community that is extremely concerned about
genetic discrimination, relating my frustrations and my fears for my children having been twice
rejected for health insurance coverage. Nancye Buelow, who suffers from alpha-1 herself and
was a representative of the Genetic Alliance at the time, heard about my problems with
Humana, Inc. and approached me about publicly coming forward with my story through the
auspices of the Genetic Alliance. | agreed, and together with the Genetic Alliance and the help
of aprestigious Washington, D.C. law firm and a wonderful and very knowledgeable AAT
doctor, an appeal to the August 2003 letter, aletter which rejected my children for health
insurance coverage on the basis of their genetic status, was drafted and sent to Humana, Inc.

Enclosed within the letter to Humana, Inc. was research information from
both the National Institutes of Health and the Alpha-1 Foundation supporting my argument that
both Jesse and Jayme, as carriers, would not become symptomatic of alpha-1 antitrypsin
deficiency and that both would remain free of AAT's debilitating destructiveness throughout
their lifetime. In February of thisyear, | received my response to the written appeal and was
once again shocked to read that my children were being rejected for health insurance coverage
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only on the basis of their AAT carrier status and nothing more.

It was only after Humana, Inc. had been approached by areporter for awell-
known and well respected newspaper that they reversed their decision and offered my children
full coverage under their company prorated from August 2003 and paid in full until April 2004
by Humana, Inc. themselves. Fortunately for me, my children are now covered by a company
that understands that everyone is entitled to affordable health care coverage, and not Humana,
Inc.

Needless to say, Humana, Inc.'sreversal of their decision felt like a hollow
victory. No one should have to force an insurance company to cover perfectly healthy children.

Infact, | don't believe it should have mattered what their genetic status was to begin with. We
are all viable members of a community with contributions to make and shouldn't have to be
afraid that our genetic anomalies, in whatever form they arise, will be held against us. | should
not have had to spend the better part of six months wondering if the decision to have my
children's genetic status verified by their pediatrician was a huge mistake. | should not have to
wonder if my children's genetic status is going to follow them into the workforce and render
them unable to become employed in their chosen fields. And | certainly should not have to feel
guilty for unknowingly passing this genetic anomaly on to my children.

Humana, Inc. made me feel guilty and ashamed for needing to know my
children's genetic status. Furthermore, they made me feel guilty for needing a parent's peace of
mind in regard to my children’s future health, and for that | am angry. Today, thereisa current
of fear reverberating throughout the genetic community. Itisnot just afear of loss, butitisa
fear of retribution. Itisafear that forces many within this particular community to accept what
should be unacceptable, discrimination by genetic status. Many people are afraid to come
forward and fight for their rights to employment and health insurance coverage because they
are afraid of the retribution that may not only be taken against them but could be taken against
their families aswell.

Therefore, it is because of the callous treatment of my children and the
countless others before them that | want to make sure that this sort of policy practice never
happens to anyone ever again. | want to make sure that | will never again exchange emails with
someone who has been phased out of a position due to her genetic status. | never again want to
hear the story of someone who has been denied health care coverage, had their health insurance
coverage canceled, been passed over for promotion, demoted, fired, or simply not hired due to
their genetic status.

National legislation that would makeit illegal for insurance companies and
employers to use someone's genetic status against them hasindeed been drafted. The Senate
passed S. 1053, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, unanimously last October, yet
one year later this very important piece of legislation that would protect many Americansis still
stranded in the House of Representatives. As each day passes and the genetic community waits
for the House to bring this bill to avote, scores of people across this nation are being
persecuted on the basis of their genetic status. It is completely reprehensible that any type of
discrimination still exists and hasto be legislated against in thisday and age. But since
discrimination still exists, it must be swiftly eradicated in any form that it is found before its
destructive force has had the chance to harm anyone else.

Finally, my family and | were extremely lucky. We had the backing of
several people and organizations to help us fight our battle in the war against genetic
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discrimination that very few people in the genetic community win. Only through legislation
and education will genetic discrimination loosen its hold on acommunity of people who are
suffering from its devastating effects.

Thank you.

MS. MASNY: Thank you, Ms. Williams, for your very powerful testimony.

Now we'll hear from Phaedra Malatek.

MS. MALATEK: Good morning, Chairman Tuckson and members of the
committee. Thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak with you today. My nameis
PhaedraMalatek. | am awife, mother, sister, daughter, and friend of people who care very
deeply about what we're doing here today.

I livein Aurora, Illinois with my husband and two sons. My primary
occupation is adjunct faculty at two local community colleges. Otherwise, I'm involved
nationally and locally on issues related to women's cancer. But I'm here today to talk to you
about the hope that lies in genetic testing, more specifically the Genetic Information
Nondiscrimination Act, S. 1053. 1 talk about hope because, as Ralph Waldo Emerson says,
"We judge of aman'swisdom by his hope,” and today I'm feeling pretty wise.

For me, genetic testing and the protection offered by S. 1053 can be
compared in an analogy to weather tracking or storm prediction. Imagine, if you will, that we
had no knowledge of the storms that recently swept through the southeastern United States and
the Caribbean. How would the death toll change? How would the damage assessment change?

How would the insurance industry have changed? Now imagine never having any information
about any storm ever. Well, | think our understanding and consideration of genetic testing can
be compared to those "what ifs."

What if people were given the knowledge of the potential stormsin their
lives? How would they be able to protect themselves? What would serve as the plywood for
the windows, and what evacuation routes would be made available to them? More importantly,
how many lives would be saved? Because that redlly isthe question, isn't it? How many lives
can we save by what we're doing here and through the enactment of S. 1053?

Continuing the storm analogy and the concept of discrimination, let's
consider a situation where you know that a storm is coming, or that may come, and you take the
precautions such as boarding up your windows and putting the lawn furniture in the pool, but
you're unable to get insurance simply because you know a storm may come? Y our neighbor, on
the other hand, has no knowledge of the storm and doesn't take the necessary precautions. |If
the storm doesn't hit, that's all fine and good. Everybody wins. However, if the storm does hit,
the insurance company provides full financial reimbursement for your neighbor's severely
damaged or lost property, but there's no coverage for your property no matter how small or
large the loss.

It seems to me that that's what we're talking about with genetic
discrimination, a situation in which no one wins and everyone loses. Those with advance
warning are actually harmed rather than helped by the knowledge they possess. Insurance
companies and those without advance knowledge even larger losses because they have been
given the knowledge to protect themselves. If fair warning is given to al parties through
genetic testing, the people who are able to protect themselves and the insurance companies who
agree to be at risk for any loss suffered all have a much larger measure of protection.

Those who are informed about their risk can be proactive and take either
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prophylactic measures or be monitored more closely, increasing their ability to entirely avoid
developing a disease or having it detected in its earliest, most treatable and survivable stages.
Aswe al know, this not only saves lives but dramatically decreases the cost to employers,
insurers, and the individual.

A storm such asthis hit my life anumber of yearsago. In 1991, my father
gathered together his children, siblings, nieces, nephews, cousins, to discuss a disease that he
had been diagnosed with. The disease is hemochromatosis, which is often referred to asiron
overload. My father had been exhibiting symptoms prior to diagnosis, including arthritis, heart
arrythmia, and a change in skin tone. At the time he was diagnosed, his heart and liver were
fully involved. At the sametime, his physicians conjectured that my grandfather and great-
grandfather may have also carried and suffered the effects of this disease.

Within ayear of our meeting, my father suffered a heart attack and within
10 years had died from the disease. Since my father's diagnosis, two of my siblings have
developed complications of the disease. None of them, my father or my siblings, have had
genetic tests for hemochromatosis. Because of my family's history with hemochromatosis and
the fact that it isthe most common inherited disease in the United States, my husband and | are
concerned for the welfare of our two children.

Mitchel and Trevor, who are here with me today, throughout their lives we
received conflicting information on how to approach their risk for hemochromatosis. We were
told to have periodic blood tests to measure their iron level. We were told to do nothing. We
were told to constantly monitor their diet. While all of this may have been good advice, none
of it replaces knowing for certain that Mitchel or Trevor carried the genetic mutation for the
disease that contributed to my father's death and is an issue in the life of my siblings. With that
knowledge, we could have taken proven knowledge to lessen the impact the predisposition for
this disease might have on their lives.

Like storm predicting and tracking capabilities, genetic testing seemsto
offer an opportunity to learn more about the constitution of diseases and their potential serious
damage. It can help ustrack the progression of a disease, aswell as determine treatment or
even protective measures to avoid the storm that may result from a genetic mutation. For my
children, this could be life-altering information, altering in that it will decrease the likelihood
that they will be incapacitated by hemochromatosis.

For diseases such as ovarian cancer, it can mean the difference between
prophylactic treatment that could allow women at high risk to lead long, successful lives, and
the stark contrast of the often futile and very painful death-prolonging treatment.

Throughout the recorded history of hurricanes, experience has gone from
storms that came out of nowhere as recently as 100 years ago to those that we were able to
track minute by minute 100 days ago. The dramatic change is not aresult of the decrease in the
power of the storm but rather an increase in technology and our understanding of hurricanes.
Along the same lines, technology and advances in the area of genetic testing can similarly
provide predictability and agreater level of protection for those at risk, and that risk, or even
the knowledge of the potential risk, can be protected through S. 1053. While the technology for
physical protection through genetic testing seemsto be in place, or at least advancing at a
relatively rapid clip, the social and economic protections are not.

Asit stands right now, if my children undergo genetic testing for
hemochromatosis, they risk not being able to obtain health insurance when they're no longer
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covered under my husband's policy and possible discrimination when they seek employment.
So we're given achoice: protect their health or protect their livelihood. It's troubling to me that
as Americans we're placed in a position where we have to make such aterrible choice. It also
troubles me that S. 1053 offers protection that would eliminate the need for my husband and |
to decide such a difficult thing, and it's not been brought to a vote in the House of
Representatives.

All of thisis reminiscent of a series of choices that were being made 40
years ago. Inthelate '50s and early '60s, my parents fought diligently for the rights of people
who were genetically different from them. They were not different in that they were at higher
risk for obtaining hemochromatosis or ovarian cancer but that their skin was a different shade
of beautiful. My parents, along with many others, won that fight. The Civil Rights Act
amendments are there to protect people from discrimination based on genetic makeup that we
can see, beit skin tone, gender, or disability. A person's genetic makeup that isn't visible
should be equally protected under the same terms and can be through S. 1053.

It's remarkable for me to realize that the work my parents did for the Civil
Rights Act in the '60s was not complete. Here | am, 40 years later, working on the same issue,
equal rights and protection under the law no matter the genetic makeup of a person. The fact
that we can look inside the DNA of a person to know more about them should not preclude
them from the protection that was fought for so valiantly. As| seeit, genetic testing isthe
weather tracking device of health. Just as we rely on weather tracking technologiesto predict
and to alow usto protect ourselves from hurricanes or other weather-related storms, | urge you
to allow usto do the same for genetic diseases.

We must move forward in protecting people from the potential stormsin
their lives. You can do this by urging Secretary Thompson and my representative, Speaker
Hastert, to bring this bill to avotein the House of Representatives. I'm sure you can agree with
me when | say that protecting livesis equally or more important than protecting property. If we
can, we should, and S. 1053 will.

MS. MASNY: Thank you, Ms. Malatek. That was such a beautiful analogy
between the genetics and storms.

Well hear next from Rebecca Fisher.

MS. FISHER: | don't think | have anything to add to that. It seems almost
like preaching to the chair, but | would like to thank the committee for everything the
committee members have done in the past to address genetic discrimination concerns, and |
hope that our remarks will help to inform your actions going forward.

In aprovocative October editorial in the journal Science last year, Nobel
laureate Sidney Brenner wonders what medicine will be like in the year 2053. "Perhaps,” he
wrote, "the prime value of our work to society will be the creation of a new public health
paradigm in which those who have a genetic predisposition to disease will learn how to take
extracare." Dr. Brenner needn't wait 50 more years to see this prediction realized. Some of us,
those who possess BRCA1 or 2 mutations, known to predispose usto breast and ovarian
cancer, are aready taking extra care.

A recent study established that 67 percent of women with this mutation are
diagnosed with breast cancer by the time they're 50 years old. But | have a cousin who died of
it when shewas 28. | have another who is battling Stage 4 ovarian cancer as we sit here today.

She has a 4-year-old. My mother had breast cancer at 35. Her mother died of ovarian cancer
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at 41. Her sister had breast cancer at 32. | was 31 when | was diagnosed with Stage 3 breast
cancer. My daughter, a21-year-old, isinthisline, too. Shetested positive for BRCAL. She
will aso have to learn how to take extra care.

But the care that Katie will have to learn how to take includes not only the
low-fat diet she's already eating and the daily exercise regimen she's undertaken. It includes
more than the breast self-exam she's required to perform monthly, and believe me, | do remind
her. It even goes beyond the MRIs of her breasts she will start receiving when she turns 25.
The extra care she will have to learn how to take demands that she, like me and like everyone in
our family who has this mutation, hide -- that is, hide, H-1-D-E -- her genetic information even,
and perhaps especially, from those health care providers most likely to help her manage her
lifelong predisposition to disease.

Unfortunately, that's what we're reduced to. Hiding integral health
information is the only fail safe way we can avoid discriminatory practices such as the loss or
denial of health insurance or the loss or denial of employment, because there ssimply isno
comprehensive federal legislation that patently forbids insurance or employment discrimination
on the basis of genetic information.

The argument has been advanced most recently and very publicly in the
Wall Street Journal last March that seeking to ban DNA discrimination isn't really necessary
because discrimination simply doesn't exist. Actually, it does exist, but the fact that it exists
only sporadically and anecdotally is afunction of the newness of the technology and the fact
that useful predictive genetic information like oursis not yet ubiquitous. It isnot afunction of
insurance companies and employers decisions to take the moral high road and, out of the
kindness of their hearts, remain disinterested in this information in the same way that they are
legally obliged to remain disinterested in information such as race, gender, creed, or sexual
preference.

I know from experience that insurance companies don't work this way.
When | was sick, | worked asamedical librarian for a small community hospital in south
Florida. The hospital was self-insured. Pay attention to this part. The hospital was self-
insured, and a third-party administrator managed our insurance plan. About ayear after my last
treatment, | was sitting at my desk when the phone rang. The flustered young woman at the
other end of the line told me | was the fourth person she had been transferred to, and someone
along the line had suggested to her that perhaps | could give her the information she needed.

Perhaps | can, | offered. Well, she began, | am calling about Rebecca
Fisher. Her bone marrow transplant and other health care costs exceeded the calendar year cap
last year, and I'm calling to find out if that's going to happen again thisyear. I'm Rebecca
Fisher, | said, and | really hope not.

This experience taught me something. It taught me that there are people
who are paid to look at me and see not my ability to contribute to a community, not my
honesty, my integrity and my faith, not my education, hard work, and social conscience, not my
family members and the ways in which | have helped each of them succeed, but dollar signs,
costs, increased liability, and the odds of my dying an expensive death.

Let usface the fact that financial incentives to use genetic information are
already present. The Washington Post reported just last month that employer-sponsored health
insurance premiums rose 11.2 percent this year and are expected to rise 13 percent next year.
With these increases in mind and no enjoinder against using genetic information to predict
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future losses, it isafailure of stewardship, and | feel terrible that this committee has done this
repeatedly, sent lettersto Secretary Thompson repeatedly without any action. It isafailure of
stewardship to expect companies and employersto simply do the right thing, and when they
don't lavish precious man hours, health care hours, and litigation costs to undo the damage.

| fear for my children, especially for my daughter, who must live not only
with an exponentially higher risk of developing aterminal disease but also with the burden of
never knowing whether or when she will legally be asked to take a genetic test as a condition of
employment, be lawfully fired from ajob because she's very likely to get breast cancer, or be
legitimately denied health insurance or life insurance on the basis of her genetic predisposition
to disease.

Welivein aworld that has no safety net for us, not even HIPAA. Many
people ssimply do not understand that HIPAA is no panaceafor al that ails health privacy. The
HIPAA gap means that HIPAA addresses none of our workplace concerns, and ERISA rules
exempt, exempt, employer-based health plans like the one at the small hospital where | worked
from mandatory HIPAA compliance. If my BRCA1 positivity had been known in 1994 and the
HIPAA protections of today were in place then, the young woman on the other end of the
phone could well and legally have recommended to her superiors, and probably gotten a bonus
for doing it, that | not be extended further health insurance coverage.

The HIPAA gap isdeep and wide. Of the 137 million private sector
American employees who have health insurance, a whopping 45 percent -- thisis from Steve
Donohue at the Department of Labor -- awhopping 45 percent, that is 63 million Americans,
fall into it. The genetic information of each one of these individuals, together with the
information of every uninsured American -- that's another 45 million people -- isfair game.

In my opinion, genetic information is no different from any other essential
distinguishing information about any human being, al of which is by law kept off the
bargaining table that bears up this human rights-based society. But if thisargument istruly
different -- okay, I'll giveyou this. If thisargument istruly different, if because of itsfiscal
component, as the United States Chamber of Commerce might argue, we must locate this
debate within the framework of an implicit utilitarianism, | would point to professional
contributions | and other genetically vulnerable people have been able to make because we've
been lucky enough to remain considered employable.

I would point to the contributions my daughter, 21 years old, hopes to make
with her two degreesin public policy and economics from Duke University. | would point to
the way in which our family's completion of innumerable psychological questionnaires, the
donation of tissue from our bodies, and the giving of our blood have advanced medical science.

I would argue that we are, in fact, making a difference for the health of all people, everyonein
thisroom, that we've lived up to our end of the social contract and deserve the same
fundamental legal protections that are extended to all Americans.

Last summer, attorney Lawrence Lorber, representing the U.S. Chamber of
Commerce, the loudest voice speaking against federal genetic information protections, told the
House Education and Workforce Committee that the possibility of employers being accused of
engaging in genetic discrimination would be disastrous for them from both alegal and public
relations perspective. He offered this as proof that genetic discrimination legislation is
unnecessary.

I would like Mr. Lorber to tell that to my friend Susan, a 38-year-old
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woman whose sister is being treated for breast cancer, whose mother had pre-menopausal
breast cancer, and aunt who died of it. We sat together at one of our son'sice hockey games
last winter and she shared her story. Without wanting to push, | gently asked her whether she
had considered speaking with a genetic counselor. Oh no, she exclaimed, | would never want
torisk losing my insurance. Thiswoman is amaster's prepared therapist who watches CNN
and reads the paper.

Fear and innuendo surround the brave new world of genetic information.
People are afraid. Their fear kegps them from being tested, even when this test might make the
difference between whether they live or die. And at the risk of sounding paranoid, | would go
on to suggest that none of us present today can afford the luxury of writing off this problem to
high-risk individuals like me. The stage is already set for a problem of catastrophic
proportions. Guthrie spot programs whereby every newborn infant's blood is collected,
screened and stored are found in all the states and territories of the U.S. and provide what is
potentially the largest and most complete genetic bank and library available in the country.

The continued non-use of genetic information implied by insurance
companies and employers lack of interest to date does not provide safeguards for any of us,
high-risk or not.

MS. MASNY: We'd ask you in one minute to wrap up, please.

MS. FISHER: I'm amost done.

We with strong family histories of disease in which the baton of illness has
been passed from generation to generation are ssimply thefirst line of defense against a
staggering spectrum of possible abuses. We want to be heard, we want to be protected, and we
don't want to sit in the back of the bus anymore.

Thank you.

MS. MASNY: Thank you very much. | disagree with your opening
statement that you didn't have anything more to add, because you definitely had alot more to
add. Thank you for your very powerful testimony.

Now wel'll hear from Tonia Phillips.

MS. PHILLIPS: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen of the committee.
My nameis Tonia Phillips, and I'm here to tell my story. It isshort and sweet.

I work for asmall company of about four people, including my two bosses,
the owners. We are atight-knit family. They have been with me through my mother dying of
ovarian cancer in April of 2002 and my own genetic testing for BRCA mutations. | was very
open with my experience just because we are asmall company and there was no way to hideit.

After finding out | was positive for the BRCA1 mutation in March of 2003,
which means | have an 80 percent lifetime chance of getting ovarian cancer and a 45 percent
lifetime chance of getting breast cancer, | began preventive steps. | had a hysterectomy in
October of 2003 and a prophylactic mastectomy in March of thisyear, and I'm still in the
middle of reconstruction.

About four months ago, our group health insurance bill came in the mail,
and it had gone up $13,000 a year for four people. My boss got the bill and yelled it through
the office. | knew that she was directing that towards me. | wasimmediately asked to switch to
my husband's health insurance policy because my situation was the reason the insurance
premium went up so much, and they said that if | was taken off the policy, it would not go up. |
was even told they would raise my hourly rateif | switched.
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| told her | was not comfortable with switching insurance companies at the
time because | was till in the reconstruction process. It was like pulling teeth to get the
insurance company to pay for these procedures, and switching would confuse and complicate
everything. | didn't think it wasin my best interest to switch while | still needed more surgery.
My feeling is that anyone in the company could be diagnosed with anything tomorrow and that
it'snot fair that | be asked to drop insurance that isimportant to me. | was doing something that
would prevent me from going through a horrible disease that would cost much more than these
preventive surgeries | was having.

We finally came to an agreement that employees would have to start paying
half of their premium, which was fine and fair with me, but I'm sure the other employees
weren't too happy with me. It seems unfair to me that | am taking steps to keep myself healthy
and to prevent cancer in the future, and | am being singled out and made to feel | am aliability.

| also don't smoke, | work out, | eat right most of thetime. If someone in the company were
diagnosed with cancer or some other disease, they would not have been asked to switch
insurance companies as | was asked. | hope that me coming here and telling my story will help
with defining the problem and passing laws against genetic discrimination of any kind.

Thank you.

MS. MASNY: Thank you, Ms. Phillips. You definitely do help to define
the problem.

Now we'll hear from Paula Funk.

MS. FUNK: Good morning. Thank you so much for inviting me to come
and talk about my story. When you're going through the process of finding out your genetic
predisposition, sometimes you feel alone. Last night | was thinking thisisn't anything | should
be nervous about because you're here to help me, and | really appreciate that invitation.

My name is Paula Funk. 1'm amother of twin 3-year-old daughters, and |
have a husband that's here with me to support me today. My family has a strong history of
breast and ovarian cancer. 1'm going to tell you alittle bit about my family.

My dad is one of ten children, and he hasfive sisters. All five of hissisters
have had breast cancer, and the current count right now is that eight of my cousins have had
breast cancer aswell. The number breakdown there, that is 13 women out of 24 that have had
breast cancer. This disease is something that the women of my family have to constantly think
about. There's a constant threat.

My first memory in lifeistaking my aunt Dorothy to her weekly treatments
to fight breast cancer. It's asketchy memory, but | remember clearly a sweet lady lying down in
the back of my mom's station wagon in a pink nightgown. Wetook her to treatment every
week, and that was the beginning of my understanding of what my future had for me.

My sweet aunt Dorothy has survived breast cancer twice and is now
fighting an aggressive form of ovarian. This month she's going to have to have a surgery to
repair tissue that al of the treatments for cancer have torn aholein her chest area, and they're
going to have to do treatment just to patch that area. This makes mereally sad. It makes me
feel like | have to aggressively fight my possibility of cancer.

Ten years ago | started realizing this, and | decided to pursue genetic
testing. At that time, genetic testing required several women from one family to give a blood
sample to determine if there was in fact a genetic mutation. | approached my aunts and my
cousins about this, and they talked to their physicians, and their physicians recommended that
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they not pursue genetic testing because at the time people could deny insurance and the
discrimination could be even worse in the future as more was learned about being genetically
positive.

Because of this, | chose not to have the test at thetime. | was 23, and 30
seemed like along way away. Well, I'm 33 now, and I'm in the middle of where most of the
women in my family begin to get breast cancer. Two of the women were 30 when they were
diagnosed. Because | am in the middle of that stage where most of the women get breast
cancer, in May of 2003 | decided to consider being genetically tested again. | talked with a
genetic counselor, and she asked me alot of questions about insurance. It was an unfortunate
time for me to want to pursue it. My husband and | had just opened our own small business.
We were the two people in the business.

As| researched about individual insurance, | learned that even with the gaps
that HIPAA provides, it's a biggest protection than what individual insurance provides. There's
no protection. It's considered free market, and they can deny you for anything. Asamatter of
fact, | was denied from individual insurance because | had had a C-section.

Because of this, we began looking to seeif we could find a group insurance
policy for two people. Almost all of the insurance companies required three to five people to
qualify asasmall group. | finaly talked to UnitedHealthcare, which allowed a two-person
company to be considered a group. If they had not accepted this, my husband and | were going
to have to close our small business, and he was going to go to work for a large company so we
could have protection in alarge group.

I'm thankful that they accepted me as asmall group, but | live with the fear
every day that | could be rejected.

During the time that | was trying to find insurance, | asked my father if he
would be tested first because the genetic disorder was going through his side of the family, not
my mother's, which iswhat we usually hear. He took the genetic test and came back positive. |
knew from my research that | had a 50/50 chance of carrying this mutation aswell. It was
tortuous waiting the three monthsto find out if |1 could have insurance, but | finally was able to
take the test, and | took came back BRCA Strain 1 positive. This means that my twin daughters
have a 50 percent chance of having the mutation aswell, and | have up to an 88 percent risk of
breast cancer in my lifetime, and up to a 44 percent risk of ovarian cancer aswell.

Ovarian cancer is particularly alarming to me because |'ve heard that there's
a 50 percent mortality rate once you are able to be diagnosed with it.

I'm so grateful that | have an opportunity to save my own life, though. |
hope to have a prophylactic mastectomy thisfall, and I've been told that it gives me a 95
percent chance that | will never have breast cancer. After I'm finished having children, | plan
on having my ovaries removed aswell. That too will give me a 95 percent chance that | will
never have ovarian cancer.

There was a point where the fear of death just outweighed my fear of
discrimination. That'swhy | pushed through with being genetically tested in spite of my fears.
I have had several problems along the way because | was tested genetically. Thefirst onel
mentioned earlier. We put off being tested for 10 years because of what the physicians
recommended because of the potential discrimination. Countless women in my family during
the last 10 years have been diagnosed with breast cancer, and several of them have lost their
battle to breast cancer. That could have all been prevented if we had pursued testing then.
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That really grieves me thinking about the loss of life there that could have
been avoided. I've decided that knowledge about my health isagift. | want everyone to feel
the freedom to have that gift. My dad and | paid for our own tests because of our fear, and then
my doctors, after | was diagnosed with BRCA Strain 1 positive, changed my diagnosis code for
each procedure they requested. When | had my breast MR, they didn't write that I'm BRCA
Strain 1 positive. They didn't feel safe for the protection of me. They ssimply wrote that | had a
strong family history, and | know that that means that there is discrimination out there or they
wouldn't do that. Being BRCA Strain 1 positive is a stronger case than having a strong family
history.

I am in the process of sending out information packets to 86 different
addresses of my direct relatives and thinking about the fact if there are 86 different addresses,
how many different people live there, because thisis a disease that affects men and women.
Men have the same chance of carrying this strand aswomen do. Asl| talk to my family
members, the amazing thing to me is they have more questions about genetic discrimination
than they do about how it affects their health. That is so sad to me, and most of the relatives
that I've talked to have refused to take the test because of that fear. | can't help but think that
just in my family, if we could all band together, how much we could do for the research of
geneticsif they felt the freedom to be tested.

I have one cousin that desperately wants to take the test, but her husband is
apreacher at asmall church and they have an individual insurance policy. So she can't take the
test. Thereisno protection at al for her. She's 35. She'stwo years older than me. Of the 13
women in my family that have had breast cancer, most of them have beenin their 30s. It makes
me so sad that she hasto wait until she has cancer until insurance will pay for a procedure.

One last area of concern is a problem that I'm having with insurance
currently. | have had my insurance for less than ayear. Other than the basic screening tests
that I've had to determine whether | currently have cancer or not, such as CA125 counts,
ultrasounds, mammograms, a breast MRI and a needle biopsy, there have been no other
expenses thisyear, and | was just informed that my health insurance has been raised $100 a
month with no explainable reason. I've talked to several medical people and they say that this
isunusual and looks suspicious.

Another problem that I'm having currently is that prophylactic measures are
not something that they automatically cover. Over two months ago | requested for them to
agree to cover a prophylactic mastectomy for me. It has been over two months and no progress
has been made on thisissue. My father had bypass surgery five years ago, and there was no
board of review that he had to go to for that surgery, and | don't understand why | haveto sit
and wait during that two months.

Onething that | would like to leave you with is| so appreciate you
listening. My medical management and the medical management of many in my family have
greatly been affected both by genetic discrimination and just the fear and the possibility of it.
Unwitting discrimination has become amajor part of my daily life. Discrimination worries me
so much for the future as well.

Last Saturday my husband Jonathan and my two daughters, Audrey and
Anna, and | walked in the Race for the Cure. My 4-year-old daughters had so many questions
about what was going on and what was it about, and my answers had to be simple because they
were so young. But | couldn't help but think what a complex issue this has been for me. My
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prayer isthat when they are old enough to decide whether they should be tested genetically,
that discrimination isn't even part of their decision process.

Finding out your genetic statusis permanent. Y ou can't take it back, and it
isn't something that you can change your mind on. What | really need, and what we all need, is
alaw that clearly defines the safety and the fact that you cannot be discriminated against
genetically. We don't know what the future holds or how society is changed, so at this point I'm
very vulnerable depending on the direction that that goes.

Thank you so much for your time, and thank you for inviting me to tell my
story.

MS. MASNY: Thank you, Ms. Funk.

Well now hear from Ms. Hinestrosa.

MS. HINESTROSA: Good morning. My name is Carolina Hinestrosa. |
am a 10-year, two-time breast cancer survivor. I'm amother of a 13-year-old daughter. 1'm also
the executive vice president for programs and planning of the National Breast Cancer Coalition.

My first diagnosis with breast cancer was at the age of 35. My second
diagnosis was at the age of 40. My younger sister was also diagnosed twice, first at age 29, and
then at 34. Over Christmas last year, two of my cousins and an aunt were diagnosed with
breast cancer aswell. Of course, we suspect there is a genetic mutation that predisposes
members of my family to breast cancer.

I sought genetic counseling as part of astudy. After carefully weighing the
potential benefits and harms of genetic testing, | decided not to undergo testing for fear of
potential consequencesto my daughter. My fears are two-fold, first that the information may
not be protected and might even be misused. | also worry that if | test positive, my daughter
might be obligated to disclose the presence of a genetic mutation and that she might suffer
future discrimination in health insurance and employment as a consegquence.

| have four sisters and a brother. We all worry about our risk for breast
cancer and the potential risk for our daughters, yet none of usfeel safe enough to undergo
genetic testing. My family experience illustrates why our nation needs strong
nondiscrimination laws.

Sinceitsfounding in 1991, the National Breast Cancer Coalition, of which |
am amember and am executive vice president, has changed the world of breast cancer in public
policy, science, industry and advocacy by empowering those with breast cancer, our families
and friends, and creating new partnerships, collaborations, research foundation opportunities,
and avenues for quality accessto health care.

The National Breast Cancer Coalition is now over 600 strong in terms of
organizations who are members, and we represent severa million patients, professionals,
women, our families and friends. Coalition membersinclude cancer support information and
service groups, as well aswomen's health and provider organizations.

The mapping of the human genome has brought with it the promise of
reducing human suffering by targeting interventions for those at risk for disease. The National
Breast Cancer Coalition believes that strong legidlative and regulatory strategies must be
established to address the protection of individuals from the misuse of genetic information at
the national, state and local levels of government. Genetic information is uniquely private
information that should not be disclosed without authorization by the individual. Improper
disclosure can lead to significant harm, including discrimination in the areas of employment,
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education, health care, and insurance.

The 1996 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, HIPAA,
took significant steps toward extending protection to individuals from genetic discrimination in
the health insurance arena by creating privacy standards, but this law does not go far enough. It
istime to extend protections against genetic discrimination to everyone. The devel opment of
new genetic tests necessitates legislative and regulatory strategies to address the issue of how to
protect individuals from the misuse of their genetic information.

Fear of potential discrimination threatens both a woman's decision to use
new genetic technologies and to seek the best medical care. Women are also afraid to enroll in
research and clinical trials that involve genetic studies, and thisin turn threatens the viability of
the scientific community to conduct the research necessary to understand the cause and find a
cure for breast cancer. Many of the women testifying at present in this audience today have
experienced exactly those concerns.

NBCC strongly supports the enactment of legislation that would protect
millions of individuals against discrimination not only in health insurance but also in the
workplace and that will provide strong enforcement mechanisms that include the private right
of action. For thisreason, NBCC supports H.R. 1910, the Genetic Nondiscrimination Health
Insurance and Employment Act authored by Congresswomen Louise Slaughter. This
legidlation prohibits health plans from requesting, requiring, collecting or disclosing genetic
information without prior specific written authorization of the individual; from using genetic
information or an individual's request for genetic services to deny or limit any coverage, to
establish eligibility, continuation, enrollment, or contribution requirements; and from
establishing differential rates or premium payments based on genetic information or an
individual's request for genetic services.

This legidlation also prohibits employers from using genetic information to
affect the hiring of an individual or to affect the terms, conditions, privileges, benefits, or
termination of employment unless the employment organization can prove thisinformation is
job related and consistent with business necessity. Also, from requesting, requiring, collecting
or disclosing genetic information prior to a conditional offer of employment; or under all other
circumstances requesting or requiring collection or disclosure of genetic information unless the
employment organization can prove thisinformation is job related and consistent with business
necessity.

It also prohibits from accessing genetic information contained in medical
records released by individuals as a condition of employment in claimsfiled for reimbursement
for health care costs and other services. Also, it prohibits releasing genetic information without
specific prior written authorization of the individual.

Most importantly, H.R. 1910 contains strong enforcement language and
provides individual s with a private right of action to go to court for legal and equitable relief if
they are avictim of genetic discrimination whether they are subject to discrimination by the
health plan or the employer.

NBCC does not support the Genetic Nondiscrimination in Health Insurance
and Employment Act, S. 1053, passed by the Senate in October 2003, because it does not
contain sufficient enforcement provisions. Unlike H.R. 1910, S. 1053 does not provide
individuals with a private right of action should they become a victim of genetic discrimination
in the individual insurance market. NBCC believes that aright with no enforcement isreally
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not aright at al. Itisfor that reason that no matter how carefully abill isworded, no matter
how much effort is put into it, including protections that breast cancer patients need, if that bill
does not have a strong enforcement mechanism, then NBCC will not support it.

Aswe clearly can see from the witnesses here today, genetic discrimination
isarea and growing problem that needs an immediate solution, not one that should wait until
we have further cases of women and men who have experienced this type of discrimination that
is so detrimental to the ability to seek quality health care.

Thank you for the opportunity to share the views of the National Breast
Cancer Coalition.

MS. MASNY: Thank you very much for your own personal experience, as
well asfor the views of the National Breast Cancer Coalition.

Lastly, we'll hear from Phil Hardt.

MR. HARDT: Good morning. It'saprivilegeto be here today, and | want
to thank the committee for inviting me to share my thoughts and personal experiences with
everyone on the critical subject of genetic discrimination.

I have two genetic diseases, hemophilia B, a bleeding disorder, which |
inherited from my mother, and also Huntington's disease, a degenerative brain disorder, which |
inherited from my father. My two biological daughters and granddaughters are all carriers of
hemophiliaB, and as aresult | now have two handsome grandsons who must also infuse with
clotting factor each time they get hurt. All three of my biological children were at risk for
Huntington's disease, but | am happy to report that none of them carry the destructive gene and
cannot passit on to subsequent generations. One tested publicly, and two tested anonymously
to conceal their outcomes.

I mention biological children because | also have five adopted children, four
of whom have severe handicaps.

Nevertheless, our story is one of continuing genetic discrimination even
though we have laws that are supposed to protect me, my children, and my grandchildren.

"It was the best of times, it was the worst of times," as Dickenssaid in"A
Tale of Two Cities." Because of advancements with the Human Genome Project, we now stand
on the brink of having more useful information that has the potential of helping literally
millions of individuals prepare early for various diseases. However, the redlity isthe
knowledge that you are carrying any particular genetic disorder, in my case hemophilia and
HD, isjust as devastating to you, your children and your grandchildren as the disease will be
later. Thisisfurther exasperated in Huntington's disease because of the severity of its
symptoms and the absolute necessity for those who face the 50/50 chance of inheriting it to
prepare early and thoroughly in order to minimize its overall destruction.

Tens of thousands of individuals with Huntington's disease have lived and
died and are aready in the insurance company's profitability calculations. However, it wasn't
noted on their death certificates because of genetic discrimination fears. It isludicrous now to
believe that because you can know early that you might inherit a genetic disorder that all of a
sudden we're going to create higher medical costs. Thisisnot the case. We areliving
examples of the Tiresias complex. If you remember, the blind seer Tiresias confronted Oedipus
with the dilemma, "It is but sorrow to be wise when wisdom profits not."

Huntington's disease is an inherited progressively degenerative brain
disorder that resultsin loss of both mental faculties and physical control. It causes brain cells
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to die prematurely. Loss of these brain cells causes very specific impairment and eventually
death. Every child of an affected parent has a 50 percent chance of inheriting the gene and
developing the disorder themselves. If HD is passed on by the father, another risk exists of
anticipation occurring and each gene-positive child becoming symptomatic, even asearly asa
young infant or in their teenage years.

HD symptoms debilitate a person when they least expect it, usualy in the
prime of their lives, around 40 years of age, when they still have children at home and are
actively pursuing careers. Living with HD islike living with Alzheimer's, Parkinson's, MS, and
going insane all at the sametime. Genetic testing has been available for Huntington's disease
for longer than any other adult-onset disorder, since 1993. The discovery of the genetic
mutation causing Huntington's disease made possible the use of predictive testing to identify
current unaffected carriers. 1n 2000 Cohen said, "Genetic testing is intended to give families
with afamily history of HD the opportunity to assess their own risk for devel oping the disease
more specifically, monitor their health status closely and, if a predictive mutation is present,
make informed choices about reproduction and lifestyle.”

It isinteresting to note here that before 1993, the almost quarter of amillion
individuals who are at risk for HD in the United States were polled, and overwhelmingly about
90 percent of them said that they would take advantage of the test to find out if they were
carrying the destructive HD gene. However, since the definitive test became available, fewer
than 10 percent have tested as a direct result of genetic discrimination.

I'd like to now tell alittle bit about my family history. In 1971, | was
diagnosed with hemophiliaB. In 1989, | was hired by Allied Signal Automotive and told by
the HR manager there not to tell my boss about my hemophilia or | would never be promoted or
trained because he wanted to get the biggest return on investment for his bucks, and if he knew
I might have a disability, | would never go anywhere in the company. Consequently, al future
bleeding episodes had to be hidden from him.

In 1996, aclaim | filed for credit insurance on acar | had purchased for my
daughter was denied because | had recently seen a neurologist regarding problems that | was
having. In 1997, | was diagnosed as having Huntington's disease. In the year 2000, my oldest
daughter married and applied for mortgage life insurance. She was turned down by every
major insurance company because of Huntington's disease. Copies of several rejection letters
areincluded in your packets, and note that the insurance companies don't even have fear of
putting their rejections in writing.

Each of her rejection letters state two pertinent facts that are important.
Number one, they each state that they will not insure her until she has tested for Huntington's
disease, and two, that she isfound to be negative. Then the insurance agent on one of the
letters where they insure her husband writes a note at the bottom that says when you find out
your status for HD, then we can insure your children, showing that the discrimination is down
to the third generation now.

In 2002, my grandson, Enoch Maximillion, is denied health insurance
coverage because of hemophiliathat he inherited from me, and a copy of this denial isalso
included in your handouts. They must now earn less than they are capable of to qualify for
state welfare in order to get coverage.

In 2002, my daughter Michelle and son Phillip tested anonymously for HD
to protect them in case either of them tested positive. | am over the Huntington's Disease
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Society of America, Arizona affiliate in the State of Arizona, and in 2001 a geneticist and |
established anonymous genetic testing to protect individuals so that they can use a bogus name
and social security number and address and all other information, and pay cash. But the
problem isit's very expensive. It's around $900 out of pocket to find out. But it is completely
concealed. But it's ashame that we have to do this.

Last year | applied for long-term care insurance and was rejected on the
basis of my HD after becoming divorced and realizing that | would probably need someone to
take care of melater.

Now, hereisalist of ways that open genetic discrimination adversely
affects those with HD over and above the negative effects of the diseaseitself. Thosewho are
at risk are reluctant to participate in research, even anonymous research, because they fear
being found out. For example, the PHAROS study for HD could have almost a quarter of a
million at-risk individualsin it, but they have only been able to recruit about 1,000. Imagine
the decrease in numbers. Other important research tests are no different. Because of our small
numbers, unfortunately, we need every bit of data possible to make things significant.

Proper medical and mental health care are not sought on atimely basis that
could have (inaudible) help reduce suffering and raise everyone's quality of life. Open
communication is almost non-existent between parents and their at-risk children regarding how
they can better prepare to minimize the destruction of HD if they do have it. HD must be kept
shrouded in secrecy to protect everyone. For the same reason, at-risk children are not
encouraged to seek good education, college education, careers with companies who offer group
benefits, marriage and childbearing options, including adoption. Misdiagnosis and the same
thing with medication occur because one doesn't know, or knows but can't be honest with their
doctors and other health care providers for fear of being discovered. Healthy living habits
aren't adopted either early on to postpone onset.

Now, using our negative experiences with being wise and our wisdom not
only doesn't profit us but is even used against us. How many other future discoveriesthat have
the potential to bless the lives of millions of others by predicting other diseases soon enough
for individuals to take positive action against them will be thwarted because of flagrant genetic
discrimination?

Thank you very much.

MS. MASNY: Thank you, Mr. Hardt.

And thank al of you for your very profound testimony.

Now we're going to open up to the committee a question and answer period
to be able to direct questions to our panelists, if any members of the committee would like to
direct any questions to them.

DR. TUCKSON: 1 just want to, just aswe get into this, just say to each of
you that on behalf of all of us on the committee, we really appreciate your taking the time to
come and talk to us. | canimagine that it's not easy to do what you al just did. | will assure
you from the chair's desk here that as we go forward in our work, we're going to make sure we
do everything in our power to make it worth your while, that something will come of this.

I know you'll go home and people will say what happened? We're going to
try to make sure that something happens as aresult of your doing this. So before my colleagues
get into the specifics, just areal big thank you to you all.

DR. COLLINS: | asowant to thank al of you for the very powerful and
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moving stories that you have told, which certainly underline in stark and compelling terms the
need to do something about a situation which grows worse every day. Itis, I'm sure, agreat
disappointment for all of you that we haven't fixed this by now, when the arguments are
compelling, when you can see that the likelihood of more and more genetic testing being
offered isinevitable, and therefore the likelihood of more and more people facing up to the
dilemmas that you have faced also becomesinevitable.

| must say that after ayear ago, just about exactly, seeing thisbill passthe
Senate unanimously, it seemed asiif thiswas finally going to get solve, and yet here we are.

Becky Fisher, | know you have been avery effective voice in terms of
carrying this message on the Hill. What do you hear when you speak to people, particularly on
the House side, about the importance of doing this? What's the roadblock that is getting in the
way right now given how compelling the arguments are, as all of you have presented? What do
you see as the reason why this hasn't been solved, and what do you see as the way around that?

MS. FISHER: Thank you for asking me that, Dr. Collins. Someone else
asked me that, actually, at the D.C. City Council. They were considering the legidation for the
City of Washington, and my response wasn't exactly politically correct, but it iswhat | believe.

The United States Chamber of Commerce is the strongest, loudest voice speaking out against
thislegislation. Without going into too much detail, they have alot more money than a medical
librarian housewife living in northern Virginia, and they have alot more clout than we do.

The only problem isthey don't have any moral authority. So | still continue
to believe that we will get it done. With all due respect to the National Breast Cancer
Coalition, | think their support of the Senate bill would be a huge, huge help for us, because
most of us don't really want private right of action, we just want the protection. So | would like
to go on the record as expressing that for myself and for literally hundreds of people that |
know who are in the same boat.

MS. MASNY: Ed?

DR. McCABE: Thisisreally two parts. Again, | wish to share what has
been said before. These are powerful, very important statementsthat all of you have made, and
| appreciate all of the sacrifices that you have gone through before, you and your families, and
the sacrifices that you make just to appear before ustoday. So thank you very much.

We as a genetics community, and also as members of the public, have been
told that genetic discrimination does not exist. We've been told t